
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 1 of 8 

 

AGENDA 

Joint REGULAR Meeting 
Wednesday, May 23, 2018 * 6:00 P. M.  

City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 
 City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the

complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.
 Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new

submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records
Request.

PUBLIC MEETING ACCESS 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays and are broadcast live on 
Cox Communications-Channel 19, Time Warner-Channel 24, and AT&T U-verse Channel 99. The video taping of 
meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a detailed account of the proceedings. Council 
meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the City’s website. 

AGENDA MATERIALS 

A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is available at City Hall, the Solana 
Beach Branch Library (157 Stevens Ave.), La Colonia Community Ctr., and online www.cityofsolanabeach.org. 
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings and at least 24 hours prior to special meetings. 
Writings and documents regarding an agenda of an open session meeting, received after the official posting, and 
distributed to the Council for consideration, will be made available for public viewing at the same time. In addition, 
items received at least 1 hour 30 minutes prior to the meeting time will be uploaded online with the courtesy agenda 
posting. Materials submitted for consideration should be forwarded to the City Clerk’s department 858-720-2400. 
The designated location for viewing public documents is the City Clerk’s office at City Hall during normal business 
hours. 

SPEAKERS 
Please submit a speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting, or the announcement of the 
Section/Item, to provide public comment. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for 
each agenda section: Oral Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports. 

AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT TITLE 2 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an agenda in 
appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who requires a modification 
or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the City Clerk’s office (858) 
720-2400 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and pagers to silent mode 
and engage in conversations outside the Council Chambers. 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

David A. Zito, Deputy Mayor 

Jewel Edson, Councilmember Judy Hegenauer, Councilmember 

Lesa Heebner, Councilmember Peter Zahn, Councilmember 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY  

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC


Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 2 of 8 

SPEAKERS: 
Please submit your speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting or the announcement of 
the Item. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for Oral 
Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports. 

READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:
Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an 
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title, 
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance 
or resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by 
the council of such reading. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: (when applicable) 

FLAG SALUTE: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial 

1. Public Works Week

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction. 

None at the posting of this agenda 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City 
Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a 
speaker slip (located on the back table) to the City Clerk.  Comments relating to items on this 
evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action 
shall be taken by the City Council on public comment items.  Council may refer items to the City 
Manager for placement on a future agenda.  The maximum time allotted for each presentation is 
THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais. 

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY: 
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not 
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.  



Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 3 of 8 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Action Items) (A.1. - A.5.)
Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of
concern by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the
Consent Calendar is addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of
the Council will be trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the
public will be discussed immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar.

A.1.  Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Ratify the list of demands for April 21 – May 4, 2018.
Item A.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.2.   General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Changes. (File 0330-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.3. Solana Beach Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District Engineer’s Report,
Annual Levy, and Collection of Assessments. (File 0495-20) 

Recommendation: That the City Council  

1. Adopt Resolution 2018-050, initiating the proceedings for the annual levy of
assessments within the Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District.

2. Adopt Resolution 2018-051, approving the Engineer's Report for proceedings
of the annual levy of assessments within Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District.

3. Adopt Resolution 2018-052, declaring intention to provide for the annual levy
and collection of assessments in Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District and
setting a time and date for a public hearing for June 27, 2018.

Item A.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.



Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 4 of 8 

A.4. Solana Beach Lighting District Engineer’s Report, Annual Levy and Collection
of Assessments. (File 0495-20) 

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Adopt Resolution 2018-053 approving the Engineer's Report for proceedings of
the annual levy of assessments within a special maintenance district.

2. Adopt Resolution 2018-054 declaring intention to provide for an annual levy
and collection of assessment in a special maintenance district and setting a time
and date for a public hearing; and scheduling the public hearing for June 27,
2018.

Item A.4. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.5. City-Wide Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement. (File 0750-25)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Adopt Resolution 2018-058:
a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a one year agreement with Nissho

of California, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $334,711, for Citywide
Landscape Maintenance Services effective July 1, 2018.

b. Authorizing the City Manager to extend the agreement for four additional
years at the City’s option.

Item A.5. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

NOTE: The City Council shall not begin a new agenda item after 10:30 p.m. unless 
approved by a unanimous vote of all members present. (SBMC 2.04.070) 

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  (B.1. – B.2.)
This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific
issue as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back
table) to the City Clerk.  After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral
testimony, the City Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be
supported by substantial evidence in the record.  An applicant or designees for a private
development/business project, for which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen
minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210.  A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to
respond to those who speak in opposition.  All other speakers have three minutes each. Please be
aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.



Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 5 of 8 

B.1.  Public Hearing: Five-Year Regional Transportation Improvement Program
(RTIP) for Fiscal Years 2019 through 2023. (File 0840-30) 

Recommendation: That the City Council  

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the public hearing, Report Council
disclosures, Receive public testimony, and Close the public hearing.

2. Adopt Resolution 2018-059, approving the TransNet Local Street Improvement
Program list of projects for Fiscal Years 2019 through 2023.

Item B.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

B.2.  Public Hearing: 325 S. Sierra, Applicant: Vince Amela, Seascape Shores
Condominiums HOA, Case 17-17-39. (File 0600-40) 

Recommendation: That the City Council  

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the public hearing, Report Council disclosures,
receive public testimony, and close the public hearing.

2. Find the Proposed Project exempt from the requirements of CEQA pursuant to
2018 State California CEQA Guidelines §15301 (existing structures) and §15302
(replacement and reconstruction).

3. Adopt Resolution 2018-048 conditionally approving a Development Review Permit
to replace less than 50% of the existing private beach access stairway below
325 South Sierra Avenue, Solana Beach.

Item B.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.1. - C.4.)
Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

C.1. Adopt (2nd Reading) of Ordinance 486 Making Necessary Changes to Solana
Beach Municipal Code Chapter 8.04 Animal Control. (File 0200-10) 

Recommendation: That the City Council  

1. Adopt Ordinance 486 making necessary changes to SBMC Chapter 8.04
Animal Control.

Item C.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.



Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda  May 23, 2018     Page 6 of 8 

C.2. Fire Governance Subcommittee Members Regarding Changes to Fire

Cooperative Agreement Language, Cost Allocation Methodology & Positions. 
(File 0260-10) 

           Recommendation: That the City Council 

       1. Discuss and provide direction to the Fire Governance Standing Committee 
      Members and City Manager on the proposed cost allocation methodology,    
                position reclassification, and updated language change in the Third Amendment to    
      the Agreement for Cooperative Management Services
Item C.2. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C.3. Highway 101 Corridor Specific Plan Discussion. (File 0600-70)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Discuss possible amendments to the Highway 101 Corridor Specific Plan and

provide direction to Staff as needed.
Item C.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C.4. National Demographics Corporation Agreement for Services Related to
Transition To District-Based Council Member Elections. (File 0430-60) 

Recommendation: That the City Council  

1. Adopt Resolution 2018-067, approving and ratifying agreement with National
Demographics Corporation. 

Item C.4. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. 
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS: 
Adopted June 14, 2017 

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE: 
GC: Article 2.3.  Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be 
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief 
reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the 
legislative body.  



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                   May 23, 2018                       Page 7 of 8 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
 

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council) 
a. City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Edson, Alternate-Zito 
b. County Service Area 17: Primary-Zahn, Alternate-Hegenauer 
c. Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Zahn /Staff (no alternate). 
d. League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-Edson, Alternate-

Heebner and any subcommittees. 
e. League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
f. League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
g. North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-Heebner, Alternate-Edson   
h. North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Heebner 
i. Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Heebner  
j. SANDAG: Primary-Zito, Alternate-Edson, 2nd Alternate-Heebner, and any subcommittees.  
k. SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Zito, Alternate-Hegenauer 
l. San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Heebner  
m. San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Zahn, Alternate-City Manager 

n. 22nd Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Heebner, 
Alternate-Edson  

STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees) 
a. Business Liaison Committee – Zito, Edson.  
b. Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation – Edson, Hegenauer  
c. Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee – Edson, Heebner 
d. I-5 Construction Committee – Zito, Edson. 
e. Parks and Recreation Committee – Zito. Edson  
f. Public Arts Committee – Hegenauer, Heebner 
g. School Relations Committee – Hegenauer, Zahn  
h. Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee – Zito, Heebner 

 

 
ADJOURN: 
 
 

 

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is June 13, 2018 
Always refer the City’s website Event Calendar for updated schedule or contact City Hall.  

www.cityofsolanabeach.org   858-720-2425 
 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

§ 
 

I, Angela Ivey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the May 23, 
2018 Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, Public 
Financing Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was provided and 
posted on May 16, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City Council 
Chambers. Said meeting is held at 6:00 p.m., May 23, 2018, in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 635 S. 
Highway 101, Solana Beach, California.       

Angela Ivey, City Clerk  
City of Solana Beach, CA  

 
 



 
Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                   May 23, 2018                       Page 8 of 8 

 
 
UPCOMING CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 
Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, as of this Agenda Posting. Dates, times, 
locations are all subject to change. See the City’s Commission’s website or the City’s Events Calendar for 
updates.  

o Budget & Finance Commission 
Thursday, June 21, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 

o Climate Action Commission 
Wednesday, June 20, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 

o Parks & Recreation Commission 
       Thursday, May 24, 2018, 4:00 p.m. (Fletcher Cove Community Center) – Special Meeting 
       Thursday, June 14, 2018, 4:00 p.m. (Fletcher Cover Community Center) – Regular Meeting 
o Public Arts Commission 

Tuesday, June 26, 2018, 5:30 p.m. (City Hall) 
o View Assessment Commission 

Tuesday, June 19, 2018, 6:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 

 





























































































RESOLUTION 2018-053 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE 
ENGINEER'S REPORT FOR PROCEEDINGS FOR THE 
ANNUAL LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS WITHIN A SPECIAL 
LIGHTING DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, pursuant to 
the terms of the "Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972", being Division 15, Part 2 of the 
Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, did, by previous Resolution, 
initiate proceedings and order the preparation of an Engineer's Report (hereinafter 
referred to as Report) for the annual levy of assessments within a special Lighting 
District, said special Lighting District known and designated as Solana Beach Lighting 
District (hereinafter referred to as Lighting District); and, 

WHEREAS, the Report, as required by said Division 15 of the Streets and 
Highways Code and as previously directed by Resolution, was presented to the City 
Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council examined and reviewed the Report as presented, 
and is satisfied with each and all of the items and documents as set forth therein, and is 
satisfied that the assessments, on a preliminary basis, are spread in accordance with 
the special benefits received from the improvements to be maintained, as set forth in 
said Report. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California 
does resolve as follows: 

1. That the above recitals are all true and correct

2. That the Engineer's Report, as presented, consists of the following:

a. Plans and specifications describing the general nature, location and
extent of the improvements to be maintained as described in the City's
Street Light Master Plan. No other substantial changes in existing
improvements or zones are proposed for the next fiscal year; all
improvements to be maintained are in existing public streets, or
sidewalks, or public leaseholds, of the City;

b. Estimate of cost, including the amount of the annual installment for the
forthcoming fiscal year;

c. Diagram of the Lighting District;

ATTACHMENT 1





RESOLUTION 2018-054 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS 
INTENTION TO PROVIDE FOR AN ANNUAL LEVY AND 
COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS IN A SPECIAL 
LIGHTING DISTRICT, AND SETTING A TIME AND PLACE 
FOR PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, has 
previously formed a special Lighting District pursuant to the terms of the "Landscaping 
and Lighting Act of 1972", being Division 15, Part 2 of the Streets and Highways Code 
of the State of California, said special Lighting District known and designated as 
SOLANA BEACH LIGHTING DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as the "Lighting 
District"); and 

WHEREAS, at this time, the City Council desires to take proceedings to provide 
for the annual levy of assessments for the next ensuing fiscal year to provide for costs 
and expenses· necessary to pay for the maintenance of the improvements in said 
Lighting District; and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer's Report (herein referred to as Report), has been 
presented to and approved by the City Council, as required by law, and the City Council 
desires to continue with the proceedings for said annual levy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 
does resolve as follows: 

1. That the above recitals are all true and correct.

2. That the public interest and convenience requires, and it is the intention of this
legislative body, to levy and collect assessments to pay the annual costs and
expenses for the installation, maintenance and/or servicing of such
improvements from those parcels which specially benefit from improvements
described below for the above-referenced Lighting District. The improvements
are generally described as follows:

a. The operation, maintenance and servicing of the following improvements,
all within existing public streets, public sidewalks, or public leaseholds of
the City.

b. Public lighting, street lighting improvements, together with appurtenances.

c. All improvements are detailed in the City's Street Light Master Plan. No
substantial changes in existing improvements or zones are proposed as a
part of these proceedings.

ATTACHMENT 2



Resolution 2018-054 
Set Public Hearing for Lighting District 

Page 2 of 3 

3. That said works of improvement are of special benefit to the properties within the
boundaries of said Lighting District, which Lighting District the legislative body
previously declared to be the area specially benefited by said works of
improvement, and for particulars, reference is made to the boundary map as
previously approved by this legislative body, a copy of which is on file in the
Office of the City Clerk and open for public inspection, and is designated by the
name of this Lighting District.

4. That the Report of the Engineer, as preliminarily approved by this legislative
body, is on file with the City Clerk and open for public inspection. Reference is
made to the Report for a full and detailed description of the improvements to be
maintained, the boundaries of the Lighting District and any zones therein, and the
proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the
Lighting District.

5. All costs and expenses of the works of maintenance and incidental expenses
have been apportioned and distributed to the benefiting parcels in accordance
with the special benefits received from the proposed work. The amount
assessed on any property has not been increased since the 2009/10 Fiscal Year.

6. Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing is hereby scheduled in the regular
meeting place of this legislative body, being the Council Chambers, City Hall, 635
South Highway 101, Solana Beach, CA on the 2?1h day of June, 2018 at 6:00
p.m.

At that time, the legislative body will consider and finally determine whether to 
levy the proposed annual assessment, and to hear all protests relating to said 
proposed proceedings, or the estimate of the cost and expenses of the proposed 
maintenance, or the proposed annual assessment; and any and all persons 
interested may file a written protest prior to the conclusion of the hearing referred 
to herein or, having filed such a protest, may file a written withdrawal of that 
protest prior to the conclusion of such hearing. Any such written protest must 
state all grounds for objection. A written protest by a property owner must 
contain a description sufficient to identify the property owned by such person, 
e.g., assessor's parcel number. Any interested person may mail a protest to the
following address:

CITY CLERK 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

635 S. HIGHWAY 101 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 

































































































































































































































































                                                  May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 8 of 27 

 

 



                                                  May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 9 of 27 

 

 



                                                  May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 10 of 27 

 
 

 



                                                  May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 11 of 27 

 
 

 



     May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 12 of 27



     May 23, 2018 
Fire Coop Agreement Amendments 

Page 13 of 27

SOL/DMR/ENC Shared Overhead 

DMR SOL ENC Total Current Formula

Population Served 4,297 13,527 62,288 80,112 10% Equal Share

Area Served 2 3 19 25 20% Population

No. Calls 851 1,301 6,135 8,287 20% Area Served

No. Personnel (Suppression) 9       18 51 78 20% Calls for Service

FY 18/19 30% Personnel

DMR SOL ENC Total

10% Equal Share 3.333333333 3.333333333 3.333333333 10 Del Mar 11.38%

20% Population 1.07 3.38 15.55 20 Solana Beach 19.54%

20% Area Served 1.46 2.76 15.77 20 Encinitas 69.08%

20% Calls for Service 2.05 3.14 14.81 20

30% Personnel 3.46 6.92 19.62 30

100

11.38 19.54 69.08

11.38% 19.54% 69.08% 100%

2017 CA Dept. of Finance/SANDAG estimates (http://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Demographics/Estimates/E-1)

2017 FIRESTATS Total Calls (incidents)

















































May 23, 2018 
Agreement with NOC 

Page 2 of 5 

its ability to influence the outcome of an election. The legislation was motivated, in part, 
by the lack of success by plaintiffs in California in lawsuits challenging at-large electoral 
systems brought under the federal Voting Rights Act. The passage of the CVRA made it 
much easier for plaintiffs to prevail in lawsuits against public entities that elect their 
members to its governing body through "at-large" elections. There is no exemption for 
cities based on population or geographic size. 

As a result, cities and other jurisdictions throughout the State have increasingly faced 
legal challenges to their "at-large" systems of electing City Council members. Almost all 
have settled claims out of court by essentially agreeing to shift voluntarily to district
based elections. Those few that have defended CVRA challenges in the courts have 
ultimately either voluntarily adopted district-based elections, settled the case by 
adopting district-based elections, or have been forced to adopt district-based elections 
by judicial decree. 

Financial Provisions of the CVRA 

The CVRA grants a prevailing plaintiff the right to recover reasonable attorneys' fees 
and expert witness fees. This has resulted in payment of large amounts of money in 
attorneys' fees by jurisdictions that have chosen to defend against a CVRA challenge. 
On the other hand, even if the City prevails, it cannot recover either attorneys' fees or 
costs. Also, even if the City prevails in one CVRA action, it would remain vulnerable to 
subsequent litigation brought under the CVRA by different plaintiffs. 

The City of Palmdale, in addition to incurring its own legal costs, reportedly paid 
plaintiffs in excess of $4.5 million in its unsuccessful attempt to defend against a lawsuit 
brought under the CVRA. (The CVRA lawsuit against the City of Palmdale is the only 
one to have gone to trial and judgment to date.) 

Settlement generally also entitles plaintiffs to recover their attorneys' fees. For 
example, the City of Modesto was the first to be sued under the CVRA. The case was 
initially dismissed on motion of the City. The dismissal was reversed on appeal, after 
which the case settled. The settlement included a payment to plaintiffs' attorneys of 
approximately $3 million. The City of Santa Barbara reportedly paid $900,000 in 
attorneys' fees and expert costs to settle the CVRA lawsuit against it. The Santa 
Barbara case settled relatively early, before any motions were filed, or discovery 
undertaken by either side. The City of Anaheim reportedly paid $1.2 million in plaintiffs' 
attorneys' fees when it settled the CVRA lawsuit against it shortly before it was set for 
trial. 

CVRA Reform (AB 350). a "Safe Harbor" 

On September 28, 2016, the Governor signed AB 350 into law, codified as Elections 
Code (EC) section 10010 (effective on January 1, 2017). The legislation provides a 
"safe harbor'' from CVRA litigation. If a city receives a demand letter, such as that 
received by the City of Solana Beach, the city is given 45 days of protection from 
litigation to assess its situation. If within that 45 days, a city adopts a resolution 



May 23, 2018 
Agreement with NDC 

Page 3 of 5 

declaring the Council's intent to transition from at-large to district-based elections, 
outlining specific steps to be undertaken to facilitate the transition, and estimating a time 
frame for action, then a potential plaintiff is prohibited from filing a CVRA lawsuit for an 
additional 90-day period. The legislation also caps a city's liability to pay attorneys' fees 
of the potential plaintiffs at $30,000, if the city follows AB 350. The potential plaintiff 
must show financial documentation that these costs were actually incurred. 

As a result of AB 350 becoming law, most jurisdictions "hit" with a CVRA demand letter 
have opted to avail themselves of the protections under EC section 1001 O as a 
business decision to minimize and control the budgetary impacts and limit potential 
exposure to attorney's fees and costs through litigation. To date, over 115 cities in the 
state have changed to district-based elections after receiving a CVRA challenge. Of 
those, 20 are cities with a population of less than 25,000. 

At-large to District-Based Elections Transition 

Pursuant to EC section 10010, a jurisdiction is required to hold five (5) public hearings 
in connection with the establishment of electoral districts. The legislation provides the 
community an opportunity to comment on the composition of the districts during the first 
two (2) public hearings before draft districting maps are prepared. Two (2) additional 
public hearings are held for public input regarding the draft districting maps and the 
proposed sequence of elections within the new districts. The final public hearing occurs 
in connection with the adoption of an ordinance establishing district-based elections. 
Failure to meet the prescribed timeframe by EC 1001 O exposes jurisdictions to litigation 
with potential devastating impacts to the budget. 

The City was informed that following the timeframe and procedures established in EC 
Section 10010 will not allow the City of Solana Beach to implement district-based 
elections in time for the November 6, 2018 City Council elections. 

On April 11, 2018, the City Council filled one vacant seat as a result of former 
Councilmember Nichols' resignation. Also on April 11, 2018, a four-member Council 
unanimously adopted Resolution 2018-042 declaring the City's intent to transition from 
at-large to district-based elections outlining specific steps to be undertaken to facilitate 
the transition for November 2020, and estimating a time frame for action, thus affording 
the City the "safe harbor" protection provided under EC 10010. 

On April 23, 2018, the City Council filled the vacancy resulting from former . 
Councilmember Marshall's resignation on April 5, 2018. At a Special Work Plan/Budget 
Council Meeting on May 9, 2018, the City Council approved the inclusion of the 
transition to district-based elections to the City's Work Plan and approved proposed 
budget allocations for the same. 

The action before the Council is to consider adopting Resolution 2018-067 approving 
the agreement with National Demographics Corporation to effectuate Resolution 2018-
042 in compliance with EC 10010. 



DISCUSSION: 

May 23, 2018 
Agreement with NDC 

Page 4 of 5 

Immediately after the approval of the inclusion of the transition to district-based 
elections in the Work Plan and Budget, the City retained the services of Dr. Douglas 
Johnson on May 10, 2018 to proceed with the EC section 1001 O activities outlined in 
Resolution 2018-042 under the City Manager's contracting authority. Since then, two 
well-attended public hearings have been conducted on May 14th at the Council 
Chambers in City Hall and May 15th at the La Colonia Community Center. 

Draft maps of potential Council election district boundaries will be published on or 
before May 23rd, for consideration and public input at the May 30th and June 26th City 
Council public hearings. Following a public hearing on July 11, 2018, the City Council 
may adopt an ordinance implementing district-based elections for seats on the City 
Council. 

Information about the City's transition to district-based elections including video of the 
May 14th public hearing is available on the City website: 

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=56737889-4955-493D-8FBF
D9F2F8A9BC7 A&DE-ACOAOB28-4797-4B86-A 194-1 DED681 A8DAD& Type-B BASIC. 

The agreement is before the City Council for approval because it is anticipated that 
costs will exceed the City Manager's contract authority. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

Not a project as defined by CEQA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Staff estimates the total cost of an uncomplicated process to establish City Council 
election districts will be at least $100,000. The City of Encinitas, while larger in area 
and population spent over $175,000 not including consultanVproject manager costs or 
staff time, when it transitioned to district-based elections. Because the costs for 
establishing districts are typically uniform regardless of a city's size or population, the 
costs to Solana Beach could approach those incurred by Encinitas. 

If the City fails to meet the EC section 10010 timeframes and have to defend a potential 
lawsuit, the costs and attorneys' fees would likely exceed $1,000,000.00 for the City's 
attorneys alone, and would be a significant General Fund liability. 

WORK PLAN: 

Fiscal Sustainability D.1. 



OPTIONS: 

May 23, 2018 
Agreement with NDC 

Page 5 of 5 

• Adopt Resolution 2018-067 approving the agreement with National Demographic
Corporation to conduct the activities within the timelines under EC section 1001 O
and consistent with Resolution 2018-042 to transition to by-district elections in
time for the November 2020 City Council elections for the City to continue to
benefit from the protection of the statutory safe-harbor provided in EC section
10010.

• Provide alternative direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2018-067, approving and 
ratifying an agreement with National Demographics Corporation. 

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

�-
Attachments: 

1. Shenkman & Hughes Demand Letter received on February 20, 2018
2. Resolution 2018-067







February 14, 2018 
Page 3 of4 

"other factors" include "the history of discrimination, the use of electoral devices or other 
voting practices or procedures that may enhance the dilutive effects of at-large elections, 
denial of access to those processes determining which groups of candidates will receive 
financial or other support in a given election, the extent to which members of a protected 
class bear the effects of past discrimination in areas such as education, employment, and 
health, which hinder their ability to participate effectively in the political process, and the 
use of overt or subtle racial appeals in political campaigns." Id. 

Solana Beach's at-large system dilutes the ability of Latinos (a "protected class") - to 
elect candidates of their choice or otherwise influence the outcome of Solana Beach's 
city council elections. 

The entire recent election history in Solana Beach is illustrative: during the past 20 years, 
there has not been one Latino that has emerged as a candidate for the Solana Beach City 
Council. Opponents of fair, district-based elections may attribute the lack of Latinos 
vying for elected positions to a lack of interest in local government from the Latino 
community. On the contrary, the alarming absence of Latino candidates seeking election 
to the Solana Beach City Council reveals vote dilution. See Westwego Citizens for Better 
Government v. City of Westwego, 872 F. 2d 1201, 1208-1209, n. 9 (5th Cir. 1989). 

As of the 2010 Census, the City of Solana Beach has a population of 12,867. According 
to recent data, Latinos comprise approximately 16% of the City's population. However, 
for at least the past 20 years, there has not been even one Latino to serve on the Solana 
Beach City Council. Therefore, not only is the contrast between the significant Latino 
proportion of the electorate and the total absence of Latinos to run for or be elected to the 
City's Council outwardly disturbing, it is also fundamentally hostile towards Latino 
participation. 

The lack of representation for Latinos has been a long-standing issue for the City of 
Solana Beach. In fact, dating back to 2003, the San Diego Union Tribune in an article 
entitled "Latinos Largely Absent in North County Power Structure", reported that 
"despite an increasingly diverse population in North County, the ranks of power remain 
nearly exclusively white." The article references an analysis by the North County Times 
which found that "Latinos and other minorities are all but missing from key government 
positions in the region's nine cities" - which notably includes Solana Beach - expressly 
stating that Latinos are absent from the City Council in the City of Solana Beach. Sadly, 
15 years later, the fact remains the same: Latinos are still absent on the Solana Beach 
City Council - which directly reflects the Latino vote dilution within the City. 

As you may be aware, in 2012, we sued the City of Palmdale for violating the CVRA. 
After an eight-day trial, we prevailed. After spending millions of dollars, a district-based 










	Agenda
	A.1. List of Demands
	A.2. Budget Update
	A.3. CRT Assmt District
	A.4. Lighting District
	A.5. Landscape Maint Contract
	B.1. RTIP FY 2019-2023
	B.2. 325 S. Sierra - Seascape Shores
	C.1. ORD 486 - Animal Control
	C.2. Fire Dept. Cost Allocation
	C.3. Hwy 101 Specific Plan
	C.4. Agreement with NDC



